City of Seattle Request for Proposal #SPD-3289
Data Analytics Platform Design and Implementation

Addendum 

Dated 03/25/15


[bookmark: _GoBack]The following is additional information regarding Request for Proposal #SPD-3289, titled “Data Analytics Platform and Design” released on 2/18/15.  The due date and time for responses will remain as 4/13/15 @4:00PM (Pacific).  This addendum includes both questions from prospective proposers and the City’s answers, and revisions to the RFP.  This addendum is hereby made part of the RFP and therefore, the information contained herein shall be taken into consideration when preparing and submitting a proposal.
	Item #
	Date Received
	Date Answered
	Vendor’s Question
	City’s Answer
	RFP Revisions

	
	
	
	
	
	

	103
	3/19/15
	3/25/15
	What is the governance for this project?  Is the City putting in place a governance group for the project?

	The City has governance in place for the project.  SPD has a Project Management Committee consisting of a special assistant to the Chief; the Assistant Chief for Compliance; the Chief Operating Officer; the CIO; its attorney; and the CIO of the Los Angeles Police Department, who serves as a special advisor.  This group has the knowledge and the authority to set direction and make clear and binding decisions for the project.

The Project Steering Committee provides broader oversight to ensure that needs and concerns beyond SPD are acknowledged and addressed.  The Steering Committee is comprised of the members of the Project Management Committee plus representatives from the Mayor’s Office, the City Attorney’s Office, the City’s Chief Technology Officer, the U.S. Department of Justice, and the Monitor.

Operationally the project will be under the direction of SPD’s CIO, who will ensure that SPD’s technical resources are fully engaged.

	

	104
	3/19/15
	3/25/15
	Would you accept a project management team that meets all of the minimum qualifications for a project manager as laid out in the RFP?
	No.  The requirement is for a single Vendor project manager with the skills and experience to ensure the success of the project, as specified in the minimum qualifications.

	

	105
	3/18/15
	3/25/15
	Are there any special access security requirements for vendors accessing the DAP environment remotely in addition to the usual background check that anyone seeing or working with the data has to undergo?
	There are no additional security requirements beyond the complete background check that will be required; however, vendors should be aware that no off-shore access will be allowed.  Please see response to questions 12 and 29.
	

	106
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	In reference to item #2 - MINIMUM QUALIFICATIONS:
 
Will the city accept past performance/qualifications from subcontractors/partners on the bidder’s team or must the past performance be directly from the primary contractor?

RFP lists Project Manager/Software under different header than Vendor’s Firm, eluding that the Project Manager/Software platform may be a partner/subcontractor of the Vendor’s Firm. Given the nature of the Data Analytics and Virtualization required in this RFP, there may be multiple layers/partners required to integrate with infrastructure, middle layer, software, and applications. 

	The Firm submitting the proposal must meet Minimum Qualification MQ1 for Firms.
The City requires a lead project manager from the Vendor.  The project manager being proposed must meet Minimum Qualifications MQ2, MQ3, and MQ4.  The City recognizes that in addition to this project manager, the Vendor may also have on its team other project managers to manage various aspects or “sub-projects” which are part of the total overall effort.

	

	107
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Section 8. Proposal Format and Organization a):  Item "A" states that bidders should “Number all pages sequentially.”  Please confirm it is acceptable to number sequentially within each individual tab or major section, rather than sequentially starting from tab 1, section 1.
	That will be acceptable
	

	108
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Please advise whether a completed checklist should be included with the proposal or is included only for bidder reference.
	It is only for reference and need not be included with the submittal.
	

	109
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	In the Submittal Checklist, it is indicated that a Software Vendor Org Chart and a separate Systems Integrator Org Chart is required as part of the Management Response. In the RFP Management Response Section, the requirement is for the Proposer's Project Team Organization for the SDP DAP Project. We assume only one Org Chart is required, to illustrate the proposed project team required to deliver on the SOW outlined in the RFP. Please confirm that one integrated Project Organization Chart is required and as such, the Submittal Checklist will be amended.
	The Management Response requires an organization chart for the Proposing Vendor’s company (Section I.B) and for each subcontracting firm (Section II.F.)  

The Management Response also requires “a diagram that illustrates the Proposer’s project organization” (Section IV.D.)
	

	110
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	In the Submittal Checklist, it is indicated that a Sample Status Report is required as part of the Management Response. In the RFP Management Response Section, a Sample Status Report is not required. Please clarify if a Sample Status Report is required.
	Section IV.C of the Management Response requires, under Statement of Work Objective 1, that the Vendor describe its strategy for managing the project, including the use of status reports, but a sample status report is not required.
	

	111
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	A) What is SPD’s cloud solution? B) What platform is it built on? C) What is the configuration?
	SPD does not currently use a unified cloud solution. 
	

	112
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does SPD have any current standard environment approach (dev, test, QA, prod) or code management protocols? If so, please describe.
	SPD prefers DEV, QA and PROD environments which are as similar as possible.  We have change management processes which govern the migration from DEV to QA to PROD and would expect the vendor to work within those constraints.  We use source code control systems and would expect this system to make use of those tools.
	

	113
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	There may be efficiencies that can be gained by parts of the project work being performed offsite at remote locations, as long as there is a strong onsite presence. Please confirm that as long as private and sensitive data is not removed offsite, that work can be done in remote locations (offsite, out of State, and offshore).
	Please see response to questions 12, 29, and 105.  Note in particular that offshore work will not be allowed.
	

	114
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Can you confirm that PwC will be precluded from bidding for this procurement due to their extensive assessment and involvement in the shaping of this RFP?
	No.  PwC completed their assessment more than a year before the RFP was issued and the results of that assessment have been made available to all prospective Proposers.  PwC had no involvement whatsoever in shaping or developing the RFP.
	

	115
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Regarding the City's prescribed format sections 1-11, would the City consider bidders' responses be noncompliant if they were to add an executive summary or introduction following Section 1 Cover Letter?
	Proposers may add an executive summary or introduction; however, proposals will be evaluated only on the content required by the RFP.
	

	116
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Please verify that numbering/lettering are accurate and that no content/requirements are missing. Currently numbering and lettering are listed as:
* II. Subcontractor Information 
   - II.A - Subcontractor Company Identity
   - II.B Company Experience
   - II.F Company Organization
   - II.G Financial Information
   - II.C Terminations
	Yes, unfortunately the subsection lettering for Section II is non-sequential, but no content/requirements are missing.
	

	117
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Given that companies have been asked to provide a firm fixed price to this RFP, does the city require details in the cost proposal for hours, rates and travel? If yes, how is such information used in the grading of the response?
	The costing detail required is that which is specified in the Cost Proposal form.
	

	118
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What is the  current volume of the data for each source systems (IAPro, CAD, RMS, LMS, GIS, Versonnel, Range, HRIS, PEDS) that is envisioned for the DAP
	See table below.

	
	

		Database Name
	IA_ADM

	Application it supports
	IA Pro

	Application vendor company
	CI Technologies

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	Professional Accountability

	Database Platform
	MS SQL Server

	Database Version
	2012

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	6.3GB
	Total of MDB and LDB
	
	

	How many total years of data?
	1
	 
	
	
	

	Annual growth (Mb)
	 
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of tables
	362
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of columns
	3247
	 
	
	
	



	Database Name
	RMSPRIM

	Application it supports
	RMS
	 
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Application vendor company
	Versaterm
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	Repository for Records that include, but are not limited to:  (1) Initial  Incident Reports and full case follow-up as relevant. (2) Evidence Itemization, (3) SPD Arrest Records and (4) Field Interviews. Application also used for Case Management Workflow and Release Tracking of Records.

	Database Platform
	Oracle

	Database Version
	11.2.0.3

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	83G
	 
	
	
	

	How many total years of data?
	since 2008
	Note: Master Name Index, and Evidence inventory was converted from prior RMS, that RMS was up for approximately 20 years.

	Annual growth (Mb)
	~15G
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of tables
	639
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of columns
	14200
	 
	
	
	



	Database Name
	CADPRIM

	Application it supports
	CAD 911
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Application vendor company
	Versaterm
	 
	 
	 
	 

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	Handle and recrod 911 calls

	Database Platform
	Oracle

	Database Version
	11.2.0.3

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	66G
	 
	
	
	

	How many total years of data?
	6 years since 2009
	 
	
	
	

	Annual growth (Mb)
	~ 12G per year
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of tables
	280
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of columns
	6029
	 
	
	
	



	Database Name
	APXPRIM
	 
	 

	Application it supports
	APEX applications
	 
	 

	Application vendor company
	in house created by SPD
	 
	 

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	Various internal applications
	 
	 

	Database Platform
	Oracle
	 
	 

	Database Version
	11.2.0.3
	 
	 

	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	15G
	 
	

	How many total years of data?
	5 years since 2010
	 
	

	Annual growth (Mb)
	3G per year
	 
	

	Total Number of tables
	1316
	 
	

	Total Number of columns
	23706
	 
	



	Database Name
	Versonnel

	Application it supports
	Multiple (CAD, RMS, IAPro, Cornerstone, APEX...)

	Application vendor company
	Versaterm

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	Information about SPD employees.

	Database Platform
	Oracle

	Database Version
	11.2.x

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	< .5 Gb
	 
	
	
	

	How many total years of data?
	10 years
	 
	
	
	

	Annual growth (Mb)
	minimal
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of tables
	4
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of columns
	100
	 
	
	
	



	Database Name
	Cornerstone

	Application it supports
	Cornerstone (LMS)

	Application vendor company
	Cornerstone

	Brief Description 
(purpose of application)
	City Wide Employee training delivery tracing and content.
Cornerstone is SaaS: At this time the only way to get information from Cornerstone is for a user with a web browser requesting reports.

	Database Platform
	Unknown

	Database Version
	Unknown

	
	
	
	
	
	
	

	Database Size (Mb)
	Unknown
	 
	
	
	

	How many total years of data?
	10 years
	 
	
	
	

	Annual growth (Mb)
	Unknown
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of tables
	Unknown
	 
	
	
	

	Total Number of columns
	Unknown
	 
	
	
	





	119
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is there volumetric estimates for the targeted DAP
	The City expects Vendors to estimate DAP data volumes based on the volumes of source systems and DAP architecture.
	

	120
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is there an estimation for the data growth year over year and for next five years? If yes, kindly provide the details
	Please see response to question 119.
	

	121
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What is the average volumetric growth of the source systems (IAPro, CAD, RMS, LMS, GIS, Versonnel, Range, HRIS, PEDS)
	Please see response to question 118.
	

	122
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is there a MDM (Master Data Management) module in the landscape? If yes, kindly brief on it
	RMS has a Master Name management component.  We would expect the DAP to provide MDM tools and a methodology for using those tools.
	

	123
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	How many years of historical data would be required for the DAP?
	At this point, data only accumulates. We would expect initially to load data from 2008 and forward, and ultimately to keep in excess of 20 years of data, pending data retention limitations, for analytics and predictive modeling.
	

	124
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What is the expected data archival, retention policy for the DAP?
	Each data collection has different data retention policies which would need to be mirrored in the DAP. 
	

	125
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does the DAP framework needs to be on HA (high-availability)?
	Please see response to question 80.
	

	126
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Currently, how  is data backed up? Kindly brief on the backup tools used and also kindly brief on DR (Disaster Recovery) needs & approach currently followed
	The DAP system and data will be backed up.  The tools and methodologies depend largely on the architecture required for the DAP and the storage mechanism used.  We currently use Tivoli for the majority of our systems.
	

	127
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	How is the 3rd party webservice is currently consumed, how frequent and volume of data extracted
	SPD has many webservices for business process automation.  These run at intervals and batch sizes appropriate for the exchange.
	

	128
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is there a need for Data stewardship, cleansing and profiling?
	Please see response to question 24.
	

	129
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does all the data needs to be managed at near real time and updated in active datawarehouse or there are specific / key topics needs to be at near real time? Kindly brief the high-level vision
	While near real time data is always preferable, SPD assumes that the DAP may be updated on a nightly batch basis; if in the future the DAP is used for real-time crime analysis, then real time updates from CAD and IAPro will be required.
	

	130
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is Addressing cleansing  required to clean the data or there is an already solution to manage?
	Some of the address data has been cleansed and geocoded; some has not.  For consistency we would prefer to incorporate SPD’s address cleansing utilities.
	

	131
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does the solution need to include only COTS (Commercial Off the Shelf) or can also include Open source products?
	Vendors are free to offer whatever products and architecture they believe will best meet the City’s functional and technical requirements.
	

	132
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Is there a need to embed  the interactive reports / dashboards in a customer portal?
	Yes; please see Technical Requirement sets UI1 and UI2.
	

	133
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Are the users internal to SPD or includes external users. If external users required, what would be the estimated count?
	Please see response to question 47.
	

	134
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What is the estimated user base growth? Year over Year and in next five years?
	Over the next five years, it is expected that the number of SPD users will reach approximately 300 users.  Eventually all 2000 employees of SPD may use the DAP.  Please see response to question 10.
	

	135
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does SPD has one Active directory or multiple?
	SPD has one Active Directory.
	

	136
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What are expected report delivery formats of reports?
For example: PDF, Excel, data files, XML
	Please see Technical Requirements set RE4.  In particular, requirement RE4.01 states “Ability to deliver and view reports and query results in Open Office and MS Office products with originally formatting intact.”
	

	137
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What are expected operational report delivery medias?
For example: SFTP, Webservices, Customer portals, etc.
	Operational reports from the DAP are expected to be provided via email, web portal and other custom applications (including RESTfull, WebAPI, ftps, etc).
	

	138
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does the scope needs to include effort to derive and define KPIs, Metrics? Or it will be mainly to implement what is currently defined?
	SPD will determine the KPIs and metrics which the DAP will be expected to deliver.
	

	139
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	What is the expectation for Ad-hoc reporting by end users? Will be creation of simple reports, interactive visuals?  Complex and operation reports will be created by IT?
	SPD expects that all users will be able to create reports interactively from menus, but that complex ad hoc queries and reports will primarily be created by analysts.
	

	140
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Regarding section 2 (Minimum Qualifications), does all the software product & tools proposed needs to be conformed to Point# 5 or will it be OK if the core product / tool is qualified?
	Core products and tools must comply with Minimum Qualification #5.  The City will judge whether a product or tool which it deems not to be core to the Vendor’s overall architecture and design may be exempted from this requirement.
	

	141
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	For Mandatory requirement (UI1.02), does it mean web portal access for reports & dashboard or it would be need to create custom portal that would integrate DAP and other applications of SPD?
	Mandatory Requirement UI1.02 means a portal to access data, queries, and reports within the DAP as well as other applications.
	

	142
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Will SPD  provide Business process specialist / SME (Subject Matter Expert) 100% or mostly dedicated during project execution?
	SPD is committed to providing knowledgeable business experts as required for the success of the project, and is looking to vendors to tell us in their proposals what level of engagement is required.
	

	143
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Regarding SE1.09:  Does the need is to have disclaimer message on pre-defined reports / dashboards or will it be digital signatures on the output (PDF) produced?
	The requirement is to have a flag (visual signal) for sensitive data that should not be shared, whether displayed electronically or in printed form.
	

	144
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Regarding SE1.10: Is the expectation is the pre-defined security level disclaimer message on the pre-defined reports/ dashboards? Or in case of ad-hoc reporting the security level should dynamically change based on the objects selected?
	SPD’s desire is that the security level should change based on the objects selected.  This may be related to a class of objects (e.g., officer home address) rather than by individual data element.
	

	145
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Can you elaborate requirements: IN1.03 & IN1.04
	The two applications listed (COBAN in-car videos and LPR photos) are examples of photo, video, and audio files which the DAP should integrate via metadata and links.  See response to questions 78 and 83.
	

	146
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Regarding IN3.03: How many PDF source is expected and will the PDF are Forms or could be images(Scan copy)  as well?
	SPD does not have a volume estimate.  PDFs could be forms or images.
	

	147
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Are there any SPSS or statistical models in the CMO (current mode of operation), If yes? Could you kindly provides details, in terms of How many, Complexity? Mode of data ingestion or consumption by those process
	ArcGIS and SAS are used by analysts but are not incorporated into operational analytics.
	

	148
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	In section 1.4, the scope mentions that the DAP must also incorporate lightweight workflow capabilities, where in section 1.6 DAP may also be required to support workflow, which should be as separate option.  Can you please clarify and add technical expectations with regards to workflow as part of the technical response document?
	Please see response to questions 40, 41, 42, 43, 79, and 84.
	

	149
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Would the City consider granting an extension of the bid due date to April 27th  2015?
	Please see response to question 102.
	

	150
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Section 1.6 requires that workflow be presented as a separate option.  From a proposal format perspective, are vendors expected to include this option as part of section 9 Technical Requirements of their response? 
	A workflow solution should be included as part of the Vendor’s technical architecture and should be priced separately in the Vendor’s Pricing Proposal, as the Pricing Proposal form requires.
	

	151
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	Does the City have any expectations with regards to Phase 2 timeline?
	The City has no specific expectations but will look favorably on a schedule that is both realistic and aggressive.
	

	152
	3/20/15
	3/25/15
	The contract mentions the possibility of a « Contract Bond ».  Is it the City’s intention to require a Contract bond?
If so, what would be the amount range to be covered (in percentage)?
If the City requires a performance contract bond, would it consider accepting an automatically renewable stand-by letter of credit to the benefit of the City?
	There is no bond requirement for this contract.
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